%Lepide

CONFIGURATION GUIDE

ACTIVE DIRECTORY SELF SERVICE

Table of Contents

1	Introduction	4
2	System Requirements	4
	2.1 Minimum System Requirements	4
	2.2 Supported Platforms	4
	2.3 Supported Browsers for Software Access	4
3	Installing Lepide Active Directory Self Service	4
4	Launching the Solution	10
5	Admin Login	10
6	Add Domain	11
	6.1 User Account Privileges	12
	6.2 Manage Domain	14
7	User Enrollment	14
	7.1 Invite Users to Enroll	14
	7.1.1 Enroll Users through Notifications	15
	7.1.2 Schedule New Notification	15
	7.2 Bulk Enrollment	16
	7.2.1 Download CSV	17
8	Policy Configuration	18
8 9	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication	18 19
8 9	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration	18 19 19
8 9	 Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 	18 19 19 21
8 9	 Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication	18 19 19 21 22
8 9	 Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication	18 19 21 22 22
8 9 10	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings	18 19 21 22 22 23
8 9 10 11	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings	18 19 21 22 22 23 24
8 9 10 11 12	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings Connection Settings	18 19 21 22 22 23 24 25
8 9 10 11 12 13	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings Connection Settings Password Synchronization	18 19 21 22 22 23 24 25 26
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings Connection Settings Password Synchronization Backup/Restore Database	18 19 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 30
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings Connection Settings Password Synchronization Backup/Restore Database 14.1 Create New Backup	18 19 21 22 23 24 25 26 30 30
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication	18 19 21 22 23 24 25 26 30 30 31
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings Connection Settings Password Synchronization Backup/Restore Database 14.1 Create New Backup 14.2 Set Backup Schedule 14.3 Restore Backup	18 19 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 30 30 31 31
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication 9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration 9.2 One Time Password Configuration 9.3 Authentication Mode 9.4 Disenrollment E-mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings Connection Settings Password Synchronization Backup/Restore Database 14.1 Create New Backup 14.2 Set Backup Schedule 14.3 Restore Backup GUI Rebranding	18 19 21 22 23 24 25 30 31 31 31
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Policy Configuration Multifactor Authentication	18 19 21 22 23 24 25 26 30 31 31 31 32 32

18	License Activation	36
19	Support	41
20	Trademarks	41

1 Introduction

Welcome to the Installation and Configuration Guide for Lepide Active Directory Self Service. In this guide, we have covered the steps required for successful installation, uninstallation, license activation, and using Lepide Active Directory Self Service for the first time. A brief overview of policy configuration has also been included in this document.

2 System Requirements

Before you install Lepide Active Directory Self Service, make sure that your computer meets the following requirements:

2.1 Minimum System Requirements

- Intel Processors
- 8 GB RAM
- Disk Space: 500 MB

2.2 Supported Platforms

One of the following Windows operating systems (Recommended):

- Windows Server 2016
- Windows Server 2019
- Windows Server 2022

2.3 Supported Browsers for Software Access

- Firefox 126.0 and above
- Google Chrome 119.0 and above
- Edge 126.0 and above

3 Installing Lepide Active Directory Self Service

To start the installation, download the setup file of Lepide Active Directory Self Service from https://www.lepide.com/active-directory-self-service/download.html and save it on the disk. Make sure that the host computer meets the entire system requirements as discussed in Section System Requirements of this guide and has sufficient memory available.

After you have downloaded the installer file, execute the following steps to install the software:

1. Double-click the Lepide Active Directory Self Service installer file. Click on Run & then Yes, to run the File & The following LADSS Setup wizard will start:



Figure 1: Setup Wizard

2. Click **Next** to continue. The following dialog box is displayed:

🚻 Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Service —		Х
License Agreement Please read the following important information before continuing.		
Please read the following License Agreement. You must accept the terms of agreement before continuing with the installation.	this	
License Agreement	_	^
Lepide Software Pvt. Ltd. Copyright © 2022, All rights reserved.		
Please read the license agreement carefully befor installing or using this product. You acknowledge t you have read this license agreement, have understood it and agree to be bound by its terms.	e that Tf	~
• I accept the agreement		
○ I do not accept the agreement		
< Back Next >	Ca	ancel

Figure 2: Setup Wizard License Agreement

- 3. Accept the license agreement and click **Next**
- 4. The user needs to enter the Web Server Port Number that can vary from 1 to 65535. Here, 7777 is the default port number

🚻 Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Service	_		\times
Web Server Information Web Server Port			
Please enter web server port 80,443 or between 1024 to 65536	and then d	ick next.	
Port:			1
			1
< Back N	lext >	Can	cel

Figure 3: Setup Wizard Port Information

- 5. After specifying the Port Number, click **Next** to continue
- 6. Here, the user can change the destination location for installing Lepide Active Directory Self Service software. Click **Next** to proceed

K Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Service	-		×
Select Destination Location Where should Lepide Active Directory Self Service be installed?			
Setup will install Lepide Active Directory Self Service into	he followi	ng folder.	
To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folde	r, click Bro	wse.	
C:\Program Files (x86)\Lepide Active Directory Self Service	Br	owse	
At least 563.3 MB of free disk space is required.			
< Back Ne	xt >	Can	cel

Figure 5: Setup Wizard Destination Location

Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Service	—		×
Select Start Menu Folder			
Where should Setup place the program's shortcuts?		Ī	Ν
Setup will create the program's shortcuts in the following S	tart Mei	nu folder.	
To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder,	click Br	owse.	
Lepide Active Directory Self Service	B	Provise	
			_
< Back Nex	t >	Cancel	

Figure 4: Setup Wizard Start Menu Folder

7. Click **Browse** if you want to change the location of the shortcuts folder in the Start Menu and then click **Next**

Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Service	-		×
Select Additional Tasks			
Which additional tasks should be performed?			
Select the additional tasks you would like Setup to perform while Active Directory Self Service, then click Next.	installing Le	pide	
Additional icons:			
Create a desktop icon			
< Back	Next >	Can	icel

Figure 6: Setup Wizard Additional Tasks

🖁 Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Servic	e		_		×
Ready to Install					
Setup is now ready to begin installing Lepid your computer.	le Active Directo	ory Self Ser	vice on		
Click Install to continue with the installation change any settings.	ı, or <mark>c</mark> lick Back if	you want	to reviev	v or	
Destination location:				~]
C: (Program Files (x86) (Lepide Active I	Directory Self Se	ervice			
Start Menu folder:					
Lepide Active Directory Self Service					
				\sim	
<				>	
-					_
			_		
	< Back	Insta	all	Can	cel
	-				

Figure 7: Setup Wizard Ready to Install

- 8. Select the additional task if required and click **Next**. Setup is now ready to start the installation process
- 9. Click **Install** to start the installation process

🚻 Setup - Lepide Active Directory Self Service —		×
Installing Please wait while Setup installs Lepide Active Directory Self Service on your computer.		
Extracting files C:\Program Files (x86)\Lepide Active Directory Self Service\tomcat\bin\clr.exe	ł	
	6-	l
	Ca	ncei

Figure 8: Setup Wizard Installing

10. When the installation process is complete, the following message box will appear on the installation wizard:



Figure 9: Setup Wizard Install Finished

11. Click the **Finish** button to complete the installation process and to run the application

4 Launching the Solution

Show Admin Login	
Start Server	
Stop Server	
Exit Tray	

Figure 10: System Tray Menu

Once the Solution is installed, it will be added to the system tray. Right-click on the icon and it displays four options to choose from:

•	Show Admin Login:	This option lets you directly go to the Admin Login section in case you have closed the browser tab where LADSS was running previously
•	Start Server:	Choosing this option will start the application server
•	Stop Server:	Choosing this option will stop the application server
•	Exit Tray:	Choosing this option will remove the application from the system tray

5 Admin Login

Getting started with Lepide Active Directory Self Service is a straightforward process. As soon as you launch the Solution, you will be prompted to login. Use **admin** as the default username and password for first time use.

	% Lepide	+
	Active Directory Self Service	
	Admin Login / User Login	
	admin	
$I = (T \land A \land A)$		
	Login	
$[-\Lambda] \times \mathbb{Z} \to \mathbb{Z}/\mathbb{Z}$	If you want to reset your admin password click. Nere	
		0

Figure 11: Admin Login

6 Add Domain

When you log into the Solution, you need to add the domain for which the self-service actions are to be configured.

		× ۵ – ۲۰ ۵۰ ۵۰ ۵۰ ۵۰ ۵۰ ۹۰ ۹۰ ۹۰ ۹۰ ۹۰
XLepide	Active Directory Self Service	© ₽ 0 A +
Dashboard Configuration Reports Support		
	Manage Domain	
	Domain Name	
	Domain Controller IP or Name	
	admin	
	Save Cancel "User must have administrative rights	
Q	No domain is available. Choose File No tte chosen Restore Database	
		Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited
		8

Figure 12: Manage Domain

To add a domain, follow the steps below:

- 1. Type the domain name in the Domain text field
- 2. Type the name of the primary domain controller in the Domain Controller text field. You can also provide the IP Address instead of the system name
- 3. Type the domain administrator name in the Username text field of the user who has the privilege to reset a password and unlock an account in the particular domain
- 4. Provide the domain admin password in the Password field
- 5. Click the **Save** button
- 6. The new domain details will be verified and if correct, the domain will be successfully added. Now, Lepide Active Directory Self Service is ready to be configured as required for self-service activities

NOTE: The User can also restore the environment and added domain (if added earlier), after choosing a valid backup file created earlier and then selecting Restore Database Option

6.1 User Account Privileges

The user account provided here should be a member of the following groups: Administrators, Domain Admins, Enterprise Admins, Schema Admins, Group Policy Creator and Owner.

Follow the steps below to provide the rights mentioned above:

- 1. Go to Administrative Tools
- 2. Open Active Directory Users and Computers
- 3. Select User Properties
- 4. Click Member Of
- 5. Click Add Group
- 6. Select the following Groups: Administrators, Domain Admins, Enterprise Admins, Schema Admins, Group Policy Creator and Owner
- 7. Click **Apply** and then click **OK**

Terminal Services Profile	COM+ Exchange General
E-mail Addresses Exchang	e Features Exchange Advanced
ieneral Address Account	Profile Telephones Urganization
nember Ur Dial-in Enviro	inment Sessions Remote control
vlember of:	
Name	Active Directory Folder
Administrators	www.mudc186.com/Builtin
Domain Admins	www.mydc186.com/Users
Domain Users	www.mydc186.com/Users
Enterprise Admins	www.mydc186.com/Users
	unum mudo106 com/Llooro
Group Policy Creator Owners	www.mydc166.com/oseis
Group Policy Creator Uwners Schema Admins	www.mydc186.com/Users
Croup Policy Creator Uwners Schema Admins	www.mydc186.com/Users
Agd	www.mydc186.com/Users
Agd Primary group: Domain Users	www.mydc186.com/Users
	www.mydc186.com/Users
	no need to change Primary group unless
Agd Agd Primary group: Domain Users Set Primary Group There is you have applicati	no need to change Primary group unless e Macintosh clients or POSIX-compliant ions.

Figure 13: Administrator Properties

6.2 Manage Domain

Multiple domains can be added and managed with Lepide Active Directory Self Service. Go to the manage domain section and enter the details for the domain that is to be added. Existing domain details can also be edited, and a particular domain can be set as the default domain.

CADSS	× +						0
O localhost7777	/ManageDomain.jsp					0 A* 12 10 12 16 %	
Lepide				Active Directory Self Service		0 7 0 /	R
Dashboard	Configuration	Reports	Support				
				Manage Domain			
				Domain Name			
				Domain Controller IP or Name			
				admin			
				Save Cancel "User must have administrative rights			
Show 10 v entries						Search:	
Action	* Defa	ult 🕴 Do	omain Name	Domain Controller	User Name	Delegate Users	
Edi		* 10	ISP210 com	BDC200	Rahul2	Rights Delegation	
Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries						Previous 1 Next	

Figure 14: Manage Domain

7 User Enrollment

This section allows you to enroll users with the software. You can send invites to users through email and ask them to enroll with the Solution or bulk enroll them using CSV files.

7.1 Invite Users to Enroll

You can notify domain users via email to enroll themselves to use features like Self Reset Password, Unlock Account, Update Active Directory Attributes, and Automatic Password Reset. You can schedule notifications to be sent at prescribed times to all unenrolled users, for existing policies.

	x + Vuetnolmer/Wetap	- 0 × ዶድል ወድፍ ጫ … 🚺
Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	© ₽ 0 A I +
Dashboard	Catiguation 🔄 Reports 🥵 Support Search by (Name Email) Search Domain 🗸	
Vser Emoliment	Enrollment Notifications	
Enrolment Nottications	Seted Policy Seted	
Enrolment Through CSV	Box Tile: LEPIDE ACTIVE DIRECTORY SELF SERVICES	
Password Synchronization	Clalog Yest	
Application Configuration	Notification Interval	
	Allopon	
	Schedule: Seed V	
	Time: 00 V Hts	
	Save Cancel	
		Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited
		l.
		- @

Figure 15: Enrollment Notifications

7.1.1 Enroll Users through Notifications

You can send enrollment Notifications directly to all the OU Members that come under the selected policy. To use this feature follow the steps below:

- 1. Click the enrollment notification tab
- 2. Select Policy from the drop-down list displayed
- 3. Enter the Policy Title in the displayed Title text field
- 4. Enter the policy text to be displayed in the text field
- 5. Select Notification Interval at Logon if you want the notification to be delivered immediately after the user login
- 6. Select schedule on daily, weekly and monthly basis from the schedule drop down list
- 7. Select the time to display a notification
- 8. Click Save to finish

7.1.2 Schedule New Notification

You can create new notifications for sending notifications to users at scheduled times. Click the Add Notification tab to get started:

- 1. Provide a name for the schedule.
- 2. Provide a Description.
- 3. Select the policy which is to be applied to the users who enroll themselves.

- 4. Select the time interval when the notification is to be sent. Choose from daily, weekly or monthly options.
- 5. In the mail setting section, provide the sender's email address.
- 6. Provide a mail subject for the notification email.
- Provide mail content that is to be delivered to users. The current URL (http://localhost:7777/LADSS/UserLoginAction.do?method=populate) is for demonstration purposes only and so will need to be edited.
- 8. Click **Save** to finish.

Lepide	Active Directory Self Service		0 12	@ &	Î
Dashboard	Contiguration 🔯 Reports 🎡 Report Search by (Name Email) Search Demain 🗸				
User Encolment	Invite Users				
Enrolment Natilications	Schedule Name:				
	Description				
Self Service Configuration	Select Policy LDSP200, com policy V				
	Schoolad 🖲 Daily 🔿 Weekly 🔿 Monthly				
	Send notification at 0 v Hes 0 v hate				
	Mail Seturgs				
	Send Mail From: Select enail				
	Mail Subject				
	Mail Content Dear «NavenNaveNo».				
	No hard the diffuence while the Leave Autor Display Set Benne, N	Copyright 2	022 Lepide Softw	re Private Limit	4
	Save				

Figure 16: Enrollment Notification

7.2 Bulk Enrollment

This section allows you to enroll multiple users at once using a CSV file. You can also send notifications to users who have been newly enrolled. The notification mail generally contains Question and Answer details for the user to authenticate enrollment from their behalf.

To enroll users, follow the steps below:

- 1. Select the policy for which the preselected users are to be enrolled.
- 2. Click **Browse** and select the CSV file which contains user data.
- 3. Select the checkbox **'If already enrolled then skip enrollment'** to avoid enrollment of already enrolled users.

- 4. Select the checkbox **Automatically disenroll users deleted from AD** to remove enrollment of those users who have been deleted from AD.
- 5. Select **Send enrollment status notification to Users** to let respective users know about their enrollment status. If selected:
 - Provide the admin mail address from whom the notification email will be sent
 - Provide a suitable email subject
 - Provide email content for the body section of the email
- 6. Click **Enroll** to successfully enroll users in bulk

2 D 💥 LADSS	x +	- 0 ×
& Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	0 R 0 8 1 +
Dashboard	Contiguration 📴 Reports 🎲 Support Search by (Name Ensail) Select Domain 🗸	
Viser Enroliment	Enrollment Through CSV	
Enrolment Notifications	Select Percy. LDSI/200_com percy.	
Enrolment Through CSV	Import CSV file with Username, Question(s)/Answer(s) and/or one time password.	
Self Service Configuration Password Synchronization	Select CSV File Citozoe File No file chosen	
> Application Configuration	Dewnfood CSV	
	It already enrolled, then skip enrollment	
	Automatically deterral uses deleted from AD	
	Send Emolment notification to Users	
	Erroll Cancel	
		Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited

Figure 17: Enrollment through CSV

7.2.1 Download CSV

Click **Download CSV** to download a blank CSV file with the correct format to enter data. Provide a username, a question and then an answer. For multiple questions, provide a question and then an answer and then the next question and next answer. Check the sample CSV image below:

X	🗵 BulkEmoliment, 05-09-2024 (1725537033569 cov - Microsoft Excel (Product Activation Failed) 📃 🚽 👩							o ×																				
File	Home	Insert	Page	Layout F	ormulas E	Data Revie	w Viev	N																				a 🕜 🗆 🗗
Paste		nter G	Calibri 18 <i>I</i> <u>U</u>	- 11 - □ = - Font	• A* A* <u>*</u> • <u>A</u> •	= = =	≫- i≢ ∰ Alignm	Wrap Text Merge & Cer	General hter * 🥶 * % ,	* ***	Condition: Formatting	al Format * as Table *	Norma Check	al Cell	Bad Explar	natory Sty	Good Input	N	leutral inked Cell	Calcul Note	lation	↑ ▼ Inser ▼	Delete For	mat 4	AutoSum * Fill * Clear * Edit	Sort & Find Filter * Selecting	åk t≁	
H 17	• (°= - =																											
	A1	- (fx SAM	Account Na	me																						
	А			В		С		D	E	F	G	н		1	J	к	L	M	N	0	Р	Q	R	S	Т	U	v	w
1 S/	AM Account Na	ime F	redefine	d Question	1 Predefin	ned Answer1	Predefin	ned Question2	Predefined Answer	2																		
2		- 1																										
3																												
4																												
5																												
6																												
7																												
8																												
10																												
11																												
12																												
13																												
14																												
15																												
16																												
17																												
18																												
19																												

Figure 18: Sample CSV File

8 Policy Configuration

Policies help to preconfigure self-service actions that can be performed by domain users. Once a domain is added, a default policy gets automatically created for that particular domain. By default, self-password reset, unlock account, and on behalf actions are included. More settings such as expiry notification schedule, self-update attributes and automatic account unlock actions can be configured. This default policy can be edited or new policies can be created as per requirements.

In order to manage a policy, follow the steps below:

- 1. Provide a policy name
- 2. Choose the domain for which policy is to be configures from the Select Domain drop-down menu
- 3. Select required OU's
- 4. The next step is to set permissions for the policy
 - a) Check self-password reset option if you want domain users to reset their AD account password on their own
 - b) Check Self Unlock Account option if you want domain users to unlock their account on their own
 - c) Check Self Update Attributes option if you want domain users to self-update their AD attributes. You can choose which attributes can be edited
 - d) Check Reset Password on behalf of User option if you want domain users to reset password on behalf of their coworkers
 - e) Check Unlock Account on behalf of User option if you want domain users to unlock account on behalf of their coworkers
 - f) Check Set Password Expiry Notification option to preset password expiry reminder

- g) Check Automatic User Account Unlock option to allow software to automatically unlock expired AD accounts after a specified time interval
- 5. Click **Save** to finish policy configuration.

Lepide		Active Directory Self Service		@₽0&1+
Dashboard	Configuration Reports	Select Dome Email)	ain 🗸	
User Enrolment	Policy Configuration			
Self Service Configuration Pakey Configuration	Policy Name: LDSP200_com policy			
	Domain Name: LDSP200.com			
	Select OU(s): All OU's	Select		
	Set Permissions	SHI Unlock Account	Self Update Attributes	
	Unlock Account on behall of User	Reset Password on behalf of User	Set Password Expiry Notification	
	Automatic User Account Unlock	Automatic User Enrollment (Through email)	Change Paseword at next lagon	
		Save Cancel		
			c	koyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited
				- 3

Figure 19: Policy Configuration

9 Multifactor Authentication

Lepide Active Directory Self Service allows users to authenticate using multiple options and validate their account for unlock and reset activities. Users can validate through:

- 1. Security Question and Answer
- 2. One Time Password

Before performing any configuration, select the policy for which these authentication settings will be applicable. Select the appropriate policy from the list of configured policies provided in the Select Policy drop-down menu.

9.1 Security Question and Answer Configuration

Lepide Active Directory Self Service

	& Lepide	Active Directory Self Service 😡 🙀 🕐 🙏	+
	Dashboard	Configuration I Reports All Sepont Search by Name Small Better Domain v	
OTE:	User Eniroliment	Multifactor Authentication Configuration	bwn Ta
	Self Service Configuration Policy Configuration	Select Policy LDSP200_com policy V	
	Multifactor Authentication	Security Question & Answer Computation	
	GENVCP Installer E-Mail Server Settings	Enable Question & Answer Configuration	
	SMS Server Settings	2 Number of Predefined Questions (less than 10 allowed)	
	Password Synchronization	D Number of User Defined Questions (less than 10 allowed)	
	Application Configuration	5 Nameer of Characters in User Defined Question (min: 5 and max: 225)	
		5 Namber of Characters in an Answer (min. 5 and max. 225)	
		Manage Productived Questions	
		Question & Answer Policies	
		Show 10 v entries Search:	
		Policy name Predefined guestions User defined questions Min Characters in guestion Min Characters in guestion	
		LD59209_cmm policy 2 0 5 5	
		Showing to 1 of 1 entries Provide 1 Not	
		One Time Parsword Configuration	
			-

Figure 20: Select Policy

Mana	Manage Predefined Questions							
		⊖∠₫						
Prede	efined Questions List							
*	What was your childhood nickname?	<u>^</u>						
*	Who was your childhood hero?							
*	What is the name of the first undergraduate college you attended?							
*	What is the name of the first school you attended?							
*	What school did you attend for sixth grade?	-						
🛨 Deno	stes mandatory questions. Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited							

Figure 21: Manage Predefined Questions

Question and Answer Settings

Enter the details as given in the table below to perform Q&A settings.

Number of Predefined Questions	Mention the number of predefined questions that you want the domain users to select while enrolling. (Less than 10 allowed)
Number of User Defined Questions	Mention the number of user-defined questions that you want the domain users to create. (Less than 10 allowed)



Number of Characters in User Defined Question	Mention the number of characters that a user defined question can contain. (Minimum 5 characters and maximum 225 characters allowed)
Number of Characters in an Answer	Mention the number of characters that an answer can contain. (Minimum 5 characters and maximum 225 characters allowed)

9.2 One Time Password Configuration

This section allows you to configure OTP settings for self-service actions.

You can either enable sending OTP through both SMS and email or either one of them. If needed, the OTP notification text can be edited.

You can also use the SMS and email settings link to perform required settings (if this has not been done previously).

User Enrollment	Multifactor Authentication Configuration	
Self Service Configuration Policy Configuration	Select Palay: LDISP200_com palay 🗸	
Multifactor Authentication	Security Question & Answer Challgorithm	×
E-Mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings	One Time Password Configuration	•
Password Synchronization Application Configuration	Text	
	C Stats Settings	
	Text Dest charactive have here. Active Directory Set Service one time baseword for charactivity is 56 E-mail Settings	
	Number of wrong attempts 3 then user blocked for 6 v hes.	
	Di-Crinit Uses (All previous); establed asers will be do-enrolled & a instituction will be sent to re-enroll)	Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited
	Bend Mad From: Delect email.	
	Save Cancel	
		- @

Figure 22: Enable SMS Configuration



9.3 Authentication Mode

This option appears when both security questions and OTP have been enabled. You can choose whether users authenticate themselves with both Q&A and OTP or just with either one of them.

Select Authentication Mode
\textcircled{O} Any One $% (\label{eq:eq:entropy}$ (Select this option to allow users authenticate either through OTP or Q&A)
O Both (Select this option to make users authenticate with both OTP and Q&A)

Figure 23: Select Authentication Mode

9.4 Disenrollment

Check this to dis-enroll all currently enrolled users with previous policies. If you have made some changes in the authentication modes or created new policies and you wish users to register as per the new settings, you can select this option to automatically dis-enroll them.

Jis-Enroll Users	(All previously enrolled users will be dis-enrolled & a notification will be sent to re-enroll)				
Send Mail From:	Select email	~			
Mail Subject:	Active Directory Self Service Disenrollment.				
*Mail Content:	Dear <%userName%>,	* • •			
	I nere are some changes in the authentication policy so you have to enrol	//			
			Save	Cancel	

Figure 24: Disenrollment

Users will receive a notification email informing them that they need to re-enroll with LADSS. You can select the mail sender and edit the email subject and content.

10 E-mail Server Settings

You need to configure the Mail server for sending Scheduled Reports from the Solution. You can edit the settings later if you want to use another Server as per your mail server. Multiple exchange servers can also be configured for using specific mail servers for different domains.

• To perform mail server settings, click the E-mail Server Settings option under the Configuration tab.

Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	e 🖬 🛛 🖉
Dashboard	Configuration 🔄 Reports 🎡 Steppot Search by (Name Email) Select Domain v	
lser Enrollment	E-Mail Server Settings	
elf Service Configuration	Exchange Server	
Vullification	Port	
Mail Server Settings	Use 551.	
word Synchronization	Use SMTP Authentication	
	From Address:	
	send test mail	
	Select Policy: None selected -	
	Saved Settings	
	Saveu Seturiya	
	Show 10 v entries	Search:
	Actions A Exchange Mail Server Sender Address Port Configured	SSL Applied On Policy
	Annu2giospart.com 25 No	Lose 200_com policy

Figure 25: Email Server Settings

To configure email server settings, follow the steps below:

- 1. Exchange Mail Server: Type the Exchange Mail Server Name or IP Address.
- 2. **Port**: Enter mail server port number.
- 3. **Use SSL:** Enable secure socket layer connection if applicable.
- 4. **SMTP** Authentication: Provide SMTP Username and SMTP Password in the given fields.
- 5. **From Address:** Provide sender's Email address in the given field. This email address will be used for sending all the scheduled reports.
- 6. Click **Save** to complete adding email server. It is recommended that you use the **Send Test Email** button to test the mail server configuration.

11 SMS Server Settings

To send OTP via SMS, you need a GSM modem and a SIM card for communication. Install the modem on the system where the software is installed. SMS data charges will apply as per your service provider.

Alternatively, you can configure SMS Server Settings **through SMS Gateway** via get & Post Method by providing the HTTP/(s) Url and Parameters along with a mobile Number as shown in the image below:

Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	©₽0× +
Dashboard	Configuration 🔯 Reports 🎡 Support Search by (Name Email) Search by (Name Email)	
D User Enrollment	SMS Server Settings	
Self Service Configuration Policy Configuration	SMS Provider SMS Gateway V	
Multifictor Authentication CliNAVCP Installer F-Mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings	SMS Send Vai HTTP6/TTP9. HTTP Method @ POST _ GET	
Password Synchronization Application Configuration	HITPHITPS UNT:	
	HTDHTTP: Paraneter:	
	Recepter Moole No:	
	Save Cancel	
		Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited
		٢

Figure 26: SMS Server Settings

To configure SMS server settings **through GSM Gateway**, follow the steps below:

- 1. The SMS Provider is by default selected as GSM Modem
- 2. Enter the **COM Port** number as 3
- 3. Enter the **Number of Attempts** to be made for sending the OTP
- 4. Enter the **Time-out** value until which the software will attempt sending the SMS
- 5. Enter the **Baud Rate** value. It is the rate at which information is transferred into your communication channel
- 6. Enter a valid **Recipient Mobile Number** from which the SMS will be sent
- 7. Click **Save** to complete the SMS settings. It is recommended that you use the **Send Test SMS** button to test the SMS server configuration.



Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	0 1 0 2	
Dashboard	Contiguration 🔄 Reports 🎇 Support Scarch by (Name Email) Select Domain 🗸		
D. How Evolution	SMS Server Settings		
Set Service Configuration	SMS Provider SMS Galeway V		
Muttractor Authentication	UTBATTES		
F Mail Server Settings SMS Server Settings	SUS Sent Va. (In Internet) HTTP Method (In Post) CET		
	HTTPHTTP8		
	HTDHTDB Manneurt		
	Roopert Mode		
	Les sons test sons		
	Save Cancel		
		Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Privale Limited	E.

Figure 27: SMS Server Settings

12 Connection Settings

Web Server settings can be updated to change the port number. By default, the preconfigured HTTP port number is 7777. The given port number is used to connect with the software from anywhere in the domain.

- 1. **Configure HTTP Port:** You can change and enter another port number as per your priorities
- 2. Set **User Session Expiry** duration: Select the time interval after which user session will automatically expire if no activity has been performed in the selected time
- 3. **SSL Port [HTTP]:** Select the Use SSL Port [HTTPS] check box if Secure Socket Layer (SSL) is used in your network. LADSS automatically uses a default certificate to populate the HTTPS port field
- 4. To import your own SSL trusted certificate, click on the **SSL Certification Tool** tab. Enter the required company details and generate a CSR file. Follow the onscreen process to successfully incorporate SSL security.

&Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	9 R 0 A 1 +
Dashboard	Configuration 🔄 Reports 🥵 Support Search by (Name Email) Select Duman 🗸	
> User Enrollment	HTTP LDAP	
	Configure HTTP Port. 7777	
	Use SSL Port [HTTPS] 8443 SSL Certification Tool	
Configure Admin Account	User Session Explires In RO V Mars	
Connection Settings		
	Note : Please restart windows service (Ladss Server Apache Tomcat*) if any changes made on this page.	
General Settings	Save Cancel	
BROCK (S)		
		Copyrigm 2022 Lepide Somware Private Limited
		_

Figure 28: Connection Settings

13 Password Synchronization

Password Synchronization enables the synchronization of third party applications and allows you to reset those particular passwords from the solution itself. Currently, password sync is supported for Office 365, IBM AS400 and Google Apps.

Follow the steps below to enable password synchronization:

- 1. Enter profile name of your choice
- 2. Provide a description
- 3. Select the policy on which the settings will be applicable
- 4. Now select the Application type

Lepide				Active Directory Self	Service		0 7 0 A	+
Cashboard	Configuration	Reports	BB Support	Search by (Name Email)		Select Domain		
D User Enrollment	Password S	ynchronization						
Set Service Configuration	Profile Name:	Enter Profile Name						
Password Sync Configuration	Description:							
	Select Policy:	LDSP200_com policy		~				
	Application Type:	Google Apps		~				
							1	I

Figure 29: Password Synchronization

Application type details for IBM:

- 1. Enter IP Address of your IBM Server.
- 2. Enter Username of the server account.
- 3. Enter Password

Select Policy:	LDSP200_com policy	~
Application Type:	IBM AS400	~
Application	n Type Details	
IP Address:		
User Name	admin	
Password:		
		Test Connection

Figure 30: Application Type Details

Application type details for Google Apps:

- 1. Browse and select the P12 Key File. To generate a P12 key file, refer to this link:. https://www.lepide.com/guide/ladss-generate-P12-key.pdf
- 2. Enter the service account email address.
- 3. Enter Domain name
- 4. Enter Username

Select Policy:	LDSP200_com policy
Application Type:	Google Apps
Application	n Type Details
P12 Key Fil	e: Choose File No file chosen Help
Service Acc Email:	ount
Domain Na	ne:
User Name	admin
	Test Connection

Figure 31: Application Type Details for Google Apps

Application type details for Office 365:

- 1. Enter the domain name of your Office 365 account.
- 2. Enter a valid username
- 3. Enter password

Select Policy:	LDSP200_com policy
Application Type:	Office 365 V
Application	Type Details
Domain Nan	ne: Prerequisites
User Name:	admin
Password:	
	Test Connection

Figure 32: Application Type Details for Office 365

You can test the connection in every case after entering the respective details.

Account Link methods

- 1. Link AD users automatically: Use this method to link all users within the selected policy automatically.
- 2. Link as per user's request: Use this method to link accounts when a particular user requests for synchronization.
- 3. Click **Save** to finish the password sync settings.



Account Link Methods			
Link AD Users Automatically			
Link As Per User's Request			
		Save	Cancel

Figure 33: Account Link Methods

14 Backup/Restore Database

The Backup/Restore Database settings section comprises of three sub-sections:

- 1. Create New Backup
- 2. Set Schedule Time
- 3. Restore Backup

14.1 Create New Backup

In this section you can create a backup of the application's existing database. Running a database backup will create a database export file and store it in your system.

To create a backup you need to click on the **Backup** button.

Lepide Active Directory Self Service stores the backup in a zipped file format in its system files where the solution was installed. For example: C:\Program Files\Lepide Active Directory Self Service\tomcat\bin\backup

Account Link Methods			
Link AD Users Automatically			
Link As Per User's Request			
	_		
		Save	Cancel



14.2 Set Backup Schedule

To schedule running a database backup you need to execute the following steps:

- 1. Select the Daily, Weekly or Monthly option.
- 2. Select the backup process start time from the dropdown.
- 3. Click on the Set button to complete the process.

You can enable or disable the automatic backup schedule option by using the given checkbox.

Password Synchronization			
Application Configuration	Enable/Disable automatic backup schedule.		
Configure Admin Account	Set schedule time:		
Connection Settings	Daily Veekly Monthly		
Backup / Restore Database			
GUI Rebranding	Generate at: 10 - Hrs 0 - Min Set		
Captcha Settings			
General Settings	Backup path : Installation folder\Lepide Active Directory Self Service\tomcat\bin\backup		



14.3Restore Backup

This section explains how to use an existing backup to restore the application's database.

Use the **Browse** button to select a backup file. Click the **Restore** button to restore the application's database using backup.

Restore			
Import Database Backup	File to restore previous settings		
Select Backup File:	Choose File No file chosen	Restore	

Figure 36: Restore Backup

15 GUI Rebranding

You can customize the application's GUI by using your company's logo and banner image. To rebrand the GUI of the application you need to execute the following steps:

- 1. Click on the **Browse** button in the Select Banner Image field and browse a Banner Image file as per your choice. Click on the **Set** button to upload the image.
- 2. Click on the **Browse** button in the Select Login Image field to browse a Login Image file as per your choice. Click on the **Set** button to upload the image.

&Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	OROR .
Dashboard	Configuration Reports Support Search by (Name Email) Select Domain V	
	GUI Rebranding	
Discr Enrollment		
Self Service Configuration	(image size should not exceed 50kb and Dimension should not be more than 127 x 35 pixels)	
Password Synchronization	Select Banner Image: Choose File No file chosen Set	
Application Configuration Contains Admin Account	(Image size should not exceed 50tb and Dimension should not be more than 150 x 95 pixels)	
Connection Settings	Select Login Image Choose File No file choosen Set	
Backup / Restore Database GUI Retiransing	(Image size should not exceed 50kb and Dimension should not be more than 72 x 72 poets)	
Cepture Settings	Select Gina CP Image. Choose File No file chosen Set	
Block (s)	(Image size should not exceed 600kb and Dimension should not be more than 1006 x 1080 pixels)	
Disable Users	Solicit Login Page Image: Choose File No file chosen Sit	
		Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited
		- 0

Figure 37: GUI Rebranding

16 Captcha Settings

You can enable captcha on the login pages and other self-service activity pages to ensure more authenticity and an added layer of security.

Select the first checkbox to enable captcha on the Admin Login page.

For enabling captcha on rest of the options, first select the respective domain.

- 1. Select the second checkbox to enable captcha on the User Login page.
- 2. Select the third checkbox to enable captcha on the Unlock Account operation page.

3. Select the fourth checkbox to enable captcha on the Reset Password operation page.

Lepide	Active Directory Self Service	⊖ \ 0 \ +
Dashboard	Configuration Peports in Second Second Second Paral Second Second Period Second Period	
D User Enrollment	Captcha Settings	
	Postor carrying on administration page	
Application Configuration	Select Domain: LDSP200 com	
	Enable captcha on user login page	
	Enable carricha on uniork account operation page	
	Enable capticha on reset password operation page	
Capicha Settings	Enable Unlock Account and Reset Password link on Login page	
	Save Cancel	
Employee Search		
		Copyright 2022 Lepice Software Private Limited
		8

Figure 38: Captcha Settings

17 Uninstalling the Solution

To remove Lepide Active Directory Self Service, follow the instructions below:

- 1. Click **Start**, go to **Control Panel/Settings**. The Control Panel window appears.
- 2. Double click the **Add or Remove Programs** icon or the **Program and Features** option (Windows 8 and above). A list of the programs installed on your computer appears.
- 3. Select **Lepide Active Directory Self Service** and click the **Uninstall** button. A backup instruction message appears onscreen before un-installing the software.



Figure 39: Uninstall



4. Click the **Yes** button to take a backup at your preferred location and click **Ok**.

Figure 40: Browse for Folder



Figure 41: Confirm Uninstallation

5. Click **Yes** to start the un-installation process.

6. The uninstallation process is in progress.



Figure 42: Uninstall Status

7. The solution confirms whether you wish to keep the current settings or delete them. Click Yes/No as required.



Figure 43: Choose Whether to Keep the Current Settings

8. Lepide Active Directory Self Service will be successfully uninstalled from your computer system.



Figure 44: Uninstall Confirmation

- To remove the remaining elements, delete its program installation folder manually and then empty the Recycle Bin as well.
- After following the steps above, Lepide Active Directory Self Service will be uninstalled successfully from your computer system.

18 License Activation

The free version of Lepide Active Directory Self Service offers a license for 50 Users only. When enrolling more than 50 Users, you will need to purchase additional licenses.

To purchase licenses, contact our sales team at sales@lepide.com.

If you are using the free version of the product, follow these steps to purchase a license and activate it following these steps:

1. Open the web interface of software and login with administrator credentials



🐮 🗖 🐘 LADSS 🛛 🗙 +				-	٥	×
C O localhost:7777/AdminLoginNewjsp		Ø A* ☆ CD	¢ @	*		0
	\\Lepide					+
		Active Directory Self Service				
		Admin Login / User Login				
		admin				
		Login				
		If you want to reset your admin password click here				
		G Unlock Account				
•						
						۲

Figure 45: Login

2. The Dashboard is the default screen that opens up.

Lepide	Active Direct	ory Self Service		0 7 0 2
Dashboard (Configuration Reports	Support Search by (Name	Email) Select Domain	v	
Dashboard			Domain Name LDSP200	com 👻
Active Directory Users Status	Refresh	Enrollment Data		Refresh
1,250	1173			
1,000				
5 750				
500				
160				
68				
0 Passsword Expired Account Locked	Soon-to-expire password in next 30 days		Enrolled Users = 0 📕 Unenrolled Users = 2018	
Audit Data	Defeast	Past 7 Days Audit Data		Defersion a
No data available for the selected domain.	Keiresn	No data available for the selected domain		Refresh
				Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limit

Figure 46: Dashboard

3. Go to the **Support** tab and click on **License** in the left pane.

Lepide	Active Directory Sel	Service	0 R 0 8
Dashboard	Configuration Reports 👷 Support Search by (Name Email)	Select Doman V	
	Support License		
	License	Request License	
	Product name.	Lepide Active Directory Self Service	
	Edition	Free	
	License purchased.	50 Users	
	Available license:	50 Users	
	Number of days left:	0	
	License expiry date:		
	Support expiry date:	Not Applicable	
	Choose File No file chosen	Apply	
			Copyright 2022 Lepide Software Private Limited

Figure 47: License Details

- Click on the Request License link on the right-top corner. License request file is saved by default on this location: C:\Documents and Settings\User\My Documents\Downloads by the name of adss(alphanumeric code).request.
- 5. Send this file to the Lepide Software sales team at <u>sales@lepide.com</u>.
- 6. Lepide will send you a license activation file as per the license purchased.
- 7. Save that file to the local disk.

&Lepide	Active Directo	ary Belf Bervice	0 R 0 A
Depintment	🕼 (entrymenter 📓 beginnt 👔 fangent 🖉 fangent (f	nal) Admitianaia v	
 Des Philologie Des Statistics Configuration Des Statistics Configuration Application Configuration 	Vagion Lanua I. Kontoen Poolos I voros Edinos Lorras dentinoses. Ascilidade levras Nandea estidays ket	Requirant Libertan Geneter Adam Denokana Bell Service Triva 193 Useriv 193 Useriv 19	
	Saport on the same	Not Additionably. Addition	
			A classific Office Market Market Provide Linder Contro Sandhiga to accivate Walkows

Figure 48: Select License File

- 8. Open software web-interface and Go to the **Support, License** page. And click on **Browse** button against the **Select License File** field.
- 9. Locate and add the license activation file to the path provided.
- 10. Click on the **Apply** button to activate the license. The following message appears.



Figure 49: License Successfully Applied

11. Click on **OK** and the license details will be displayed on the screen:

l

Product name:	Lepide Active Directory Self Service
Edition	Enterprise
License purchased:	100 Users
Available license:	92 Users
Number of days left:	365
License expiry date:	Sat, Nov 21, 2015
Support expiry date:	Sat, Nov 21, 2015

Figure 50: License Details



19 Support

If you are facing any issues whilst installing, configuring, or using the solution, you can connect with our team using the contact information below.

Product Experts

USA/Canada: +1(0)-800-814-0578 UK/Europe: +44 (0) -208-099-5403 Rest of the World: +91 (0) -991-004-9028

Technical Gurus

USA/Canada: +1(0)-800-814-0578 UK/Europe: +44 (0) -208-099-5403 Rest of the World: +91(0)-991-085-4291

Alternatively, visit <u>https://www.lepide.com/contactus.html</u> to chat live with our team. You can also email your queries to the following addresses:

sales@Lepide.com

support@Lepide.com

To read more about the solution, visit https://www.lepide.com/active-directory-self-service/

20 Trademarks

Lepide Active Directory Self Service, Lepide Data Security Platform, Lepide Data Security Platform App, Lepide Data Security Platform App Server, Lepide Data Security Platform (Web Console), Lepide Data Security Platform Logon/Logoff Audit Module, Lepide Data Security Platform for Active Directory, Lepide Data Security Platform for Group Policy Object, Lepide Data Security Platform for Exchange Server, Lepide Data Security Platform for SQL Server, Lepide Data Security Platform SharePoint, Lepide Object Restore Wizard, Lepide Active Directory Cleaner, Lepide User Password Expiration Reminder, and LiveFeed are registered trademarks of Lepide Software Pvt Ltd.

All other brand names, product names, logos, registered marks, service marks and trademarks (except above of Lepide Software Pvt. Ltd.) appearing in this document are the sole property of their respective owners. These are purely used for informational purposes only.

Microsoft[®], Active Directory[®], Group Policy Object[®], Exchange Server[®], Exchange Online[®], SharePoint[®], and SQL Server[®] are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

NetApp® is a trademark of NetApp, Inc., registered in the U.S. and/or other countries.

